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Independent Auditors’ Report

To the Members of
Intermetal Engineers (India) Private Limited

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Intermetal Engineers (India)
Private Limited (“the Company"), which comprise the balance sheet as at 31 March 2023,
the statement of profit and loss including other comprehensive income, the statement of
changes in equity and the cash flow statement for the year then ended, and notes to the
financial statements, including a summary of the significant accounting policies and other
explanatory information (hereinafter referred to as “financial statements”).

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given
to us, the aforesaid financial statements give the information required by the Companies
Act, 2013 (“the Act”) in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity
with the Indian Accounting Standards prescribed under section 133 of the Act read with
the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules 2015, as amended, (‘Ind AS") and
other accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the
Company as at 31 March 2023, its profit (including other comprehensive income),
changes in equity and its cash flows for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit of the financial statements in accordance with the Standards on
Auditing (“SAs") specified under Section 143(10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under
those SAs are further described in the Auditors’ Responsibility for the Audit of the
Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Company in
accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of
India (“ICAI") together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the
financial statements under the provisions of the Act and Rules thereunder, and we have
fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the
ICAl's Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion on the financial statements.
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Independent Auditors’ Report (Continued)

Intermetal Engineers (India) Private Limited

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most
significance in our audit of the financial statements of the current period. These matters
were addressed in the context of our audit of the financial statements as a whole and in
forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.

Reporting of key audit matters as per SA 701, Key Audit Matters are not applicable to the
Company as it is an unlisted company.

Information other than the Financial Statements and Auditor’s Report thereon

The Company’s Board of Directors are responsible for the other information. The other
information comprises the information included in the Board's Report, but does not include
the financial statements and our auditors’ report thereon.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do
not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the
other information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially
inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or
otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed on other information obtained prior to the date of
our auditor's report, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other
information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the
Financial Statements

The accompanying financial statements have been approved by the Board of Directors of
the Company. The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in
Section 134(5) of the Act, with respect to the preparation and presentation of these
financial statements that give a true and fair view of the financial position, financial
performance including other comprehensive income, changes in equity and cash flows of
the Company in accordance with Ind AS and other accounting principles generally
accepted in India. This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting
records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding the assets of the
Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and
application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are
reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate
internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and
completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of
the financial statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.
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Intermetal Engineers (India) Private Limited

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the
Financial Statements (Continued)

In preparing the financial statements, Board of Directors is responsible for assessing the
Company's ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters
related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless
management either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no
realistic alternative but to do so.

The Board of Directors is responsible for overseeing the Company's financial reporting
process.

Auditors’ Responsibility for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements
as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to
issue an auditors’ report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level
of assurance but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will
always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud
or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could
reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis
of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs specified under section143(10) of the Act, we
exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit.
We also:

* Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to
those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide
a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting
from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of
internal control.

e Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design
audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under Section
143(3)(i) of the Act, we are also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether
the Company has adequate internal financial controls system in place and the
operating effectiveness of such controls.

e Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness
of accounting estimates and related disclosures made by management.
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Auditors’ Responsibility for the Audit of the Financial Statements (Continued)

¢ Conclude on the appropriateness of management'’s use of the going concern basis
of accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material
uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on
the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a
material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor's report
to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are
inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit
evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or
conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern.

e Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial
statements, including the disclosures, and whether the financial statements
represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair
presentation.

Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the financial statements that, individually
or in aggregate, makes it probable that the economic decisions of a reasonably
knowledgeable user of the financial statements may be influenced. We consider
quantitative materiality and qualitative factors in (i) planning the scope of our audit work
and in evaluating the results of our work; and (ii) to evaluate the effect of any identified
misstatements in the financial statements.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters,
the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any
significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied
with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with
them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our
independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine
those matters that were of most significance in the audit of the financial statements of the
current period and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our
auditors’ report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or
when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be
communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would
reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.
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Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

As required by the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2020 (‘the Order’), issued by
the Central Government of India in terms of Section 143(11) of the Act, we give in
“‘Annexure A", a statement on the matters specified in the paragraphs 3 and 4 of the
Order, to the extent applicable.

o

Further to our comments in Annexure A, as required by Section 143(3) of the Act
based on our audit, we report to the extent applicable, that:

(a) we have sought and obtained all the information and explanations, which to the

best of our knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit of
the accompanying financial statements;

in our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the
Company so far as it appears from our examination of those books;

the financial statements dealt with by this report are in agreement with the books
of account;

in our opinion, the aforesaid financial statements comply with the Ind AS
prescribed under Section 133 of the Act;

on the basis of the written representations received from the directors and taken
on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on
31 March 2023 from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164(2) of
the Act;

with respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial
reporting of the Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer
to our separate Report in “Annexure B". Our report expresses an unmodified
opinion on the adequacy and operating effectiveness of the Company’s internal
financial controls over financial reporting;

With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditors’ Report in
accordance with Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, as
amended, in our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the
explanations given to us:

i. the Company does not have any pending litigation(s) which would impact its
financial position as at 31 March 2023;

i. the Company did not have any long-term contracts, including derivative
contracts, for which there were any material foreseeable losses as at 31
March 2023;

ii. there were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor
Education and Protection Fund by the Company during the year ended 31
March 2023.
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Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements (Continued)

iv. (a) The management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge
and belief, no funds have been advanced or loaned or invested (either
from borrowed funds or securities premium or any other sources or kind
of funds) by the Company to or in any person(s) or entity(ies), including
foreign entities (‘the intermediaries’), with the understanding, whether
recorded in writing or otherwise, that the intermediary shall, whether,
directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in
any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Company (‘the Ultimate
Beneficiaries'’) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf the
Ultimate Beneficiaries;

(b) The management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge
and belief, no funds have been received by the Company from any
person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities (‘the Funding Parties’),
with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the
Company shall, whether directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other
persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of
the Funding Party (‘Ultimate Beneficiaries’) or provide any guarantee,
security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries; and

(c) Based on such audit procedures performed as considered reasonable
and appropriate in the circumstances, nothing has come to our notice that
has caused us to believe that the management representations under
sub-clauses (a) and (b) above contain any material misstatement.

v. The Company has not declared or paid any dividend during the year ended
31 March 2023.

(h) With respect to the matter to be included in the Auditors’ Report under Section
197(16):

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the
Company has not paid managerial remuneration to its directors during the
current year.

For Saini Pati Shah & Co LLP,
Chartered Accountants
Firm's Registration No: 137904W/W100622

{ngft/l‘.l. Saini

Partner
Membership No: 093079

Mumbai, May 26, 2023 UDIN: 23093079BGXASC1368
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Annexure A to the Independent Auditors’ Report — 31 March 2023

With reference to the Annexure A referred to in the Independent Auditors’ Report to the
members of the Company on the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2023,
we report the following:

(i)

(ii)

(a)(A) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars,

(b)

(d)

(e)

including quantitative details and situation of property, plant and
equipment.

(B) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars of

intangible assets.

The property, plant and equipment have been physically verified by the
management during the year and no material discrepancies were noticed
on such verification. In our opinion, the frequency of physical verification
program adopted by the Company, is reasonable having regard to the size
of the Company and the nature of its assets.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis
of our examination of the records of the Company, the title deeds of all the
immovable properties (other than properties where the Company is the
lessee and the lease agreements are duly executed in favour of the lessee)
as disclosed in the financial statements, are held in the name of the
Company.

The Company has not revalued its property, plant and equipment or
intangible assets during the year. Accordingly, reporting under clause
3(i)(d) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

No proceedings have been initiated or are pending against the Company for
holding any benami property under the Benami Transactions (Prohibition)
Act, 1988 (45 of 1988) and rules made thereunder. Accordingly, reporting
under clause 3(i)(e) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(a) The inventory has been physically verified by the management during the

year. In our opinion, the frequency of such verification is reasonable. We are

- informed that no discrepancies of 10% or more in the aggregate for each class
of inventory were noticed on verification between the physical stocks and the
book records.

(b) The Company has not been sanctioned working capital limits by banks or

financial institutions on the basis of security of current assets during any point
of time of the year. Accordingly, reporting under clause 3(ii)(b) of the Order is
not applicable to the Company.
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Annexure A to the Independent Auditors’ Report — 31 March 2023 (Continued)

(iii)

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our
examination of the records of the Company, the Company has not made any
investments in, provided any guarantees or security or granted any advances in
the nature of loans, secured or unsecured, to companies, firms, limited liability
partnership or any other parties during the year. The Company during the year has
granted unsecured loans to any other parties in respect of which the requisite
information is as below:

(a)

(c)

Based on the audit procedures carried on by us and as per the information and
explanations given to us, the Company during the year has granted unsecured
loans to any other parties as below:

(Rs in lakhs)
Particulars ot binshiull CHERE
Aggregate amount during the year ended R R [
Others —Loantoemployees L T & ! 1.00
Balance outstanding as at balance sheet date .
Others — Loan to employees A L " 0.10

According to the information and explanations given to us and based on the
audit procedures conducted by us, in our opinion the terms and conditions of
the loans granted during the year are, prima facie, not prejudicial to the
interest of the Company.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of
our examination of the records of the Company, in the case of loans granted
during the year, in our opinion the repayment of principal and payment of
interest has been stipulated and the repayments or receipts have been
regular.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of
our examination of the records of the Company, there is no overdue amount
for more than ninety days in respect of loans granted during the year.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of
our examination of the records of the Company, there is no loan granted
falling due during the year, which has been renewed or extended or fresh
loans granted to settle the overdues of existing loans given to same parties.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of
our examination of the records of the Company, the Company has not granted
any loans during the year either repayable on demand or without specifying
any terms or period of repayment.
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Annexure A to the Independent Auditors’ Report — 31 March 2023 (Continued)

(iv)

v)

(Vi)

(vii)

(viii)

(ix)

In our opinion, and according to the information and explanations given to us, the
Company has not granted any loans, or provided any guarantees or security to the
parties covered under sections 185 of the Act. According to the information and
explanations given to us, the provisions of Section 186 of the Act in respect of the
loans given, guarantees given, securities provided or investments made are not
applicable to the Company. Accordingly, reporting under clause 3(iv) of the Order
is not applicable to the Company.

In our opinion, and according to the information and explanations given to us, the
Company has not accepted any deposits or there is no amount which has been
considered as deemed deposit within the meaning of sections 73 to 76 of the Act
and the Companies (Acceptance of Deposits) Rules, 2014 (as amended).
Accordingly, reporting under clause 3(v) of the Order is not applicable to the
Company.

The Central Government has not specified the maintenance of cost records under
sub-section (1) of section 148 of the Act, in respect of Company's
products/business activity. Accordingly, reporting under clause 3(vi) of the Order is
not applicable to the Company.

(a) In our opinion, and according to the information and explanations given to
us, the Company is regular in depositing undisputed statutory dues
including Goods and Services Tax, Provident Fund, Employees’ State
Insurance, Income-Tax, Duty of Customs, Cess and other material statutory
dues, as applicable, with the appropriate authorities though there has been
delays in few instances. Further, no undisputed amounts payable in respect
thereof were outstanding at the year-end for a period of more than six
months from the date they became payable.

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us, there are no
statutory dues referred to in subclause (a) above that have not been
deposited with the appropriate authorities on account of any dispute.

According to the information and explanations given to us, no transactions were
surrendered or disclosed as income during the year in the tax assessments under
the Income Tax Act, 1961 (43 of 1961) which have not been recorded in the books
of accounts.

(a) According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company did
not have loan or other borrowing from any lender during the year. Accordingly,
reporting under clause 3(ix)(a) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us and representation
received from the management of the Company, and on the basis of our audit
procedures, the Company has not been declared a willful defaulter by any
bank or financial institutions or government or government authority.
Accordingly, reporting under clause 3(ix)(b) of the Order is not applicable to
the Company.

c) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of
our examination of the records of the Company, the Company has not taken
any term loans from any lender. Accordingly, reporting under clause 3(ix)(c) of
the Order is not applicable to the Company.
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Annexure A to the Independent Auditors’ Report — 31 March 2023 (Continued)

(d) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us,
the Company has not raised funds on short term basis during the year.
Accordingly, reporting under clause 3(ix)(d) of the Order is not applicable to
the Company.

(e) According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company does
not have any subsidiaries, associates or joint ventures. Accordingly, reporting
under clause 3(ix)(e) and clause 3(ix)(f) of the Order is not applicable to the
Company.

(x) (a) The Company has not raised any money by way of initial public offer or further
public offer (including debt instruments), during the year. Accordingly,
reporting under clause 3(x)(a) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(b) The Company has not made any preferential allotment or private placement of
shares or convertible debentures (fully, partially or optionally convertible)
during the year. Accordingly, reporting under clause 3(x)(b) of the Order is not
applicable to the Company.

(i) (a) To the best of our knowledge and according to the information and
explanations given to us, no fraud by the Company or on the Company has
been noticed or reported during the period covered by our audit.

(b) No report under section 143(12) of the Act has been filed with the Central
Government for the period covered by our audit.

(c) According to the information and explanations given to us including the
representation made to us by the management of the Company, there are no
whistle-blower complaints received by the Company during the year.

(xii) The Company is not a Nidhi Company and the Nidhi Rules, 2014 are not
applicable to it. Accordingly, reporting under clause 3(xii) of the Order is not
applicable to the Company.

(xiii)  In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the
transactions with the related parties are in compliance with section 188 of the Act,
where applicable, and the details of the related party transactions have been
disclosed in the financial statements as required by the applicable accounting
standards. Further, the Company is not required to constitute an Audit Committee
under Section 177 of the Act, and accordingly, to this extent, reporting under
clause 3(xiii) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(xiv) (a) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us,
the Company has an internal audit system as required under section 138 of
the Act which is commensurate with the size and nature of its business.

(b) We have considered the reports issued by the Internal Auditors of the
Company till date for the period under audit.

According to the information and explanation given to us, the Company has not
entered into any non-cash transactions with its directors or persons connected with
them and accordingly, provisions of section 192 of the Act are not applicable to the
Company.




Independent Auditors’ Report (Continued)

Intermetal Engineers (India) Private Limited
Annexure A to the Independent Auditors’ Report — 31 March 2023 (Continued)

(xvi) The Company is not required to be registered under section 45-1A of the Reserve
Bank of India Act, 1934. Accordingly, reporting under clause 3(xvi) of the Order is

not applicable to the Company.

(xvii) The Company has not incurred any cash loss in the current as well as the

immediately preceding financial year.

(xviii) There has been no resignation of the statutory auditors during the year.
Accordingly, reporting under clause 3(xviii) of the Order is not applicable to the

Company.

(xix) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of the
financial ratios, ageing and expected dates of realisation of financial assets and
payment of financial liabilities, other information accompanying the financial
statements, our knowledge of the plans of the Board of Directors and management
and based on our examination of the evidence supporting the assumptions,
nothing has come to our attention, which causes us to believe that any material
uncertainty exists as on the date of the audit report that Company is not capable of
meeting its liabilities existing at the date of balance sheet as and when they fall
due within a period of one year from the balance sheet date. We, however, state
that this is not an assurance as to the future viability of the Company. We further
state that our reporting is based on the facts up to the date of the audit report and
we neither give any guarantee nor any assurance that all liabilities falling due
within a period of one year from the balance sheet date, will get discharged by the

Company as and when they fall due.

(xx)  According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company does not
fulfill the criteria as specified under section 135(1) of the Act read with the
Companies (Corporate Social Responsibility Policy) Rules, 2014 and according,

reporting under clause 3(xx) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(xxi)  The reporting under clause 3(xxi) is not applicable in respect of audit of financial
statements of the Company. Accordingly, no comment has been included in

respect of said clause under this report.

For Saini Pati Shah & Co LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm's Registration No: 137904W/W100622

J#F

Mumbai, May 26, 2023

Som Nath Saini

Partner
Membership No: 093079
UDIN: 23093079BGXASC 1368



Intermetal Engineers (India) Private Limited
(All amounts are in INR Lakhs, unless otherwise Stated)

Balance sheet as at 31 March 2023

Particulars Note No. As at As at
i 31 March 2023 31 Mamrch 2022
ASSETS
Non-current assets
Property, plant and equipment 4 281.32 423,72
Intangible assets 5 0.68 0,89
Other non-current assets 6 0.09 0.17
Total non-current assets 282.09 424,78
Current assets
Inventories 7 5345 33.19
Financial assets
Trade receivables 8 5243 88.07
Cash and cash equivalents 9 1,000.97 656,58
Bank balances other than cash and cash equivalents above 10 - 60.00
Other financial assets 11 5.68 2,55
Current tax assets (net) 12 27.44 27.44
Other current assets 13 098 1.14
Total current assets 1,140.95 868,97
Total assets 1,423.04 1,293.75
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equity
Equity share capital 14 1.60 1.60
Other equity 15 1,325.20 1,146,54
Total equity 1,326.80 1,148.14
Liabilities
Non-current liabilities
Provisions 16 2.10 344
Deferred tax liabilities (net) 17 37.82 72.58
Total non-current liabilities 39.92 76.02
Current liabilities
Financial liabilities
Trade payables
- Total outstanding dues to micro and small enterprises 18 31.79 46.36
- Total outstanding dues to creditors other than micro and small enterprises 6.19 4.21
Other financial liabilities 19 7.11 3.71
Contract liabilities 20 4.14 1.26
Provisions 21 092 298
Current tax liabilities (net) 22 221 232
Other current liabilities 23 3.96 8.76
Total current liabilities 56.32 69,60
Total liabilities 96.24 145.61
Total equity and liabilities 1,423.04 1,293.75
Summary of significant accounting policies 3

Notes referred to above form an integral part of the financial statements

As per our report of even date

For Saini Pati Shah & Co LLP
Chartered Accountants

Firm Registration No, 137904W/W100622

Ml

Som Nath Saini
Partner
Membership No. 093079

Place: Mumbai
Date: 26 May 2023

For and on behalf of the board of directors
Intermetal Engineers (India) Private Limited

Pa gar
Director
DIN: 06500871

Place: Gurugram
Date: 26 May 2023

Vijay Sharma
Director
DIN: 00880113

Place: Gurugram
Date: 26 May 2023




Intermetal Engineers (India) Private Limited
(All amounts are in INR Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

Statement of profit and loss for the year ended 31 March 2023

Particulars Note No.  For the year ended 31 For the wear ended
March 2023 31 Miarch 2022
Income
Revenue from operations 24 533.61 455,98
Other income o 111.20 27.46
Total income 644.81 483.44
Expenses
Cost of materials consumed 26 321.57 224,99
Changes in inventories of finished goods and work-in-progress 27 (20.69) 18.80
Employee benefits expenses 28 49.62 51.07
Depreciation and amortization expense 29 18.28 19.04
Other expenses 30 36.23 38.03
Total expenses 405.01 351.94
Profit before tax 239.80 131.50
Tax expense
- Current tax 97.22 3830
- Deferred tax (34.69) (3.87)
- Adjustment in respect of tax of earlier years (1.59) (4.19)
Total tax expense 60.94 30.23
Profit after tax ] 178.86 101.26

Other comprehensive income
Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss

- Remeasurement of the defined benefit plans (0.27) (1.00)
- Income tax relating to items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss 0.07 0.25
Other comprehensive income / (loss) for the year, net of tax (0.20) (0.75)
Total comprehensive income for the year 178.66 100.51
Basic and diluted earning per share (face value of Rs 100 each) 38 11,199.75 6,340.93

Summary of significant accounting policies 3

Notes referred to above form an integral part of the financial statements

As per our report of even date For and on behalf of the board of directors
For Saini Pati Shah & Co LLP Intermetal Engineers (India) Private Limited
Chartered Accountants

Firm Registration No. 137904W/W 100622

Som Nath Saini Pa Sagar Vijay Sharma
Partner Director Director
Membership No. 093079 DIN: 06500871 DIN: 00880113
Place: Mumbai Place: Gurugram Place: Gurugram

Date: 26 May 2023 Date: 26 May 2023 Date: 26 May 2023




Intermetal Engineers (India) Private Limited
(All amounts are in INR Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

Cash flow statement for the year ended 31 March 2023

Particulars

For the year ended
31 March 2023

For the y ear ended
31 M arch 2022

Cash flows from operating activities
Profit before tax
Adjustments for:
Depreciation and amortization expense
Interest income
Profit on sale of property, plant and equipment
Sundry balances written back
Allowance for expected credit loss
Allowance for expected credit loss no longer required written back
Gain on redemption of mutual fund units
Bad debts written off
Sundry balances written off
Operating cash flows before working capital changes
Working capital movements:
(Increase) / Decrease in inventories
(Increase) / Decrease in trade receivables
(Increase) / Decrease in other financial assets
(Increase) / Decrease in other assets
Increase / (Decrease) in trade payables
Increase / (Decrease) in other financial liabilities
Increase / (Decrease) in contract liabilities
Increase / (Decrease) in provisions
Increase / (Decrease) in other liabilities
Cash generated from operations
Income taxes paid, net
Net cash flows generated from operating activities (A)

Cash flows from investing activities
Purchase of property, plant and equipment
Proceeds from sale of property, plant and equipment
(Investment) / withdrawal of fixed deposit (net)
Proceeds from redemption of mutual fund units
Interest received

Net cash flows generated from investing activities (B)

Net increase / (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents (A+B)
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year

Notes to cash flow statement:
1 Components of cash and cash equivalents:
Cash on hand
Balances with banks
- In current accounts
- In deposit accounts (with original maturity of less than 3 months)
Total cash and cash equivalents

239.80 131.50
18.28 19.04
(34.97) (22.07)
(75.70) -
(0.20) (2.23)
0.54 .
“ (1.56)
(0.32) (1.12)
i 1.19
K 0.48
147.43 125.23
(20.26) 16.10
35.10 (54.32)
(0.10) 0.45
0.24 5.07
(12.59) 20,15
3.40 (0.67)
3.08 (2.67)
(3.67) (1.39)
(4.80) 745
147.83 115.40
(95.72) (37.12)
5211 78.28
(9.97) (8.79)
210,00 .
60.00 90,00
0.32 112
31.93 22.25
292.28 104.58
344.39 182.86
656.58 473.73
1,000.97 656.58
033 0.10
20.64 16.48
980.00 640.00
1,000.97 656.58

2 The above cash flow statement has been prepared under the indirect method as set out in Ind AS 7 statement of cash flows /s 133 of Companies Act, 2013
(‘'Act’) read with Rule 4 of the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules 2015, as amended, and the relevant provisions of the Act.

As per our report of even date

For Saini Pati Shah & Co LLP
Chartered Accountants
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Intermetal Engineers (India) Private Limited
(Al amounts are in INR Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

Statement of changes in equity for the year ended 31 March 2023

A. Equity Share Capital

Current reporting period
Balance at the beginning of the Changes in equity Restated balance at the Changes in equity Balance at the end of
current reporting period share capital due to beginning of the current [share capital during [current reporting
prior period error reporting period the current year period

1.60 - 1.60 - 1.60
Previous reporting period
Balance at the beginning of the Changes in equity Restated balance at the Changes in equity Balance at the end of
previous reporting period share capital due to beginning of the previous [share capital during |previous reporting

prior period error reporting period the previous year period
1.60 - 1.60 - 1.60
B. Other Equity
Current reporting period
i) Reserves and surplus Total
Capital reserve _Retained earnings
Balance at the beginning of current 0.91 1,145.63 1,146.54
reporting period
Changes in accounting policy or prior - - -
iod error
Restated balance at the beginning of the 091 1,145.63 1,146.54
current reporting period
Total comprehensive income for thel - 178.66 178.66
current year
Balance at the end of current 0.91 1,324.29 1,325.20
|reporting period
Previous reporting period
Reserves and surplus Total
Capital reserve Retained earnings
Balance at the beginning of previous 0.91 1,045.12 1,046.03
reporting period
Changes in accounting policy or prior - - -
period error
Restated balance at the beginning of the| 0.91 1,045.12 1,046.03
revious rting period I

Total comprehensive income for the - 100.51 100.51
previous year
Balance at the end of previous 0.91 1,145.63 1,146.54
reporting period

137904W/
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Intermetal Engineers (India) Private Limited
(All amounts are in INR lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

Notes to the financial statement for the year ended 31 March 2023

1. Corporate Information

Intermetal Engineers (India) Private Limited (‘the Company’) is domiciled and incorporated in India under the
provisions of Indian Companies Act. The registered office of the Company is situated at Gala No. 18, Noble
Industrial Estate No. 1, Navghar, Vasai Road (East), Palghar, Mumbai — 401202, The Company is primarily
engaged in the business of manufacturing and sale of slide gate mechanics and related components.

2.1

Statement of compliance and basis of preparation and presentation

Statement of compliance

The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS)
as per the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 as amended and notified under Section
133 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act") and in conformity with the accounting principles generally
accepted in India and other relevant provisions of the Act.

These financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2023 are approved by the Board of Directors at its
meeting held on 26 May 2023.

Basis of preparation and measurement

These financial statements have been prepared on an accrual basis and under the historical cost convention
except for certain financial instruments that are measured at fair values at the end of each reporting period
(refer accounting policy regarding financial instruments, refer note 3. 10).

Fair value measurement

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly
transaction between market participants at the measurement date, regardless of whether that price is directly
observable or estimated using another valuation technique. In estimating the fair value of an asset or a
liability, the Company takes into account the characteristics of the asset or liability if market participants
would take those characteristics into account when pricing the asset or liability at the measurement date.
Fair value for measurement and/or disclosure purposes in these financial statements is determined on such a
basis, except for measurements that have some similarities to fair value but are not fair value, such as net
realisable value in Ind AS 2 or value in use in Ind AS 36.

The Company uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which sufficient
data are available to measure fair value, maximising the use of relevant observable inputs and minimizing
the use of unobservable inputs.

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the financial statements are
categorised within the fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest level input that is
significant to the fair value measurement as a whole:

Level 1- Quoted (Unadjusted) marked prices in the active markets for identical assets or liabilities.

Level 2- Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement is directly or indirectly observable.

Level 3- Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement is unobservable.




Intermetal Engineers (India) Private Limited
(All amounts are in INR lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

Notes to the financial statement for the year ended 31 March 2023

Impairment of non-financial assets

Impairment exists when the carrying value of an asset or cash generating unit (“CGU”) exceeds its
recoverable amount, which is the higher of its fair value less costs of disposal and its value in use. The
fair value less costs of disposal calculation is based on available data from binding sales transactions,
conducted at arm’s length, for similar assets or observable market prices less incremental costs for
disposing of the asset. The value in use calculation is based on a discounted cash flow (“DCF”) model.
The cash flows are derived from the budget for future years and do not include restructuring activities that
the Company is not yet committed to or significant future investments that will enhance the asset’s
performance of the CGU being tested. The recoverable amount is sensitive to the discount rate used for
the DCF model as well as the expected future cash-inflows and the growth rate used for extrapolation

purposes.

Investment in equity shares:

The Company is exposed to equity price risk from investments in equity securities measured at fair value
through profit and loss. The Management monitors the proportion of equity securities in its investment
portfolio based on market indices. Material investments within the portfolio are managed on an individual
basis and all buy and sell decisions are approved by the Board of Directors.

Effective Interest Rate (EIR) Method:

The Company recognizes interest income / expense using a rate of return that represents the best estimate of
a constant rate of return over the expected life of the loans given / taken. This estimation, by nature,
requires an element of judgement regarding the expected behaviour and life-cycle of the instruments, as
well as expected changes to other income/expense that are integral parts of the instrument.

Fair value measurements and valuation processes:

When the fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities recorded in the balance sheet cannot be
derived from active markets, they are determined using a variety of valuation technique that include the use
of valuation models. The inputs to these models are taken from observable markets where possible, but
where this is not feasible, a degree of judgement is required in establishing fair values. Judgments include
considerations of inputs such as liquidity risk, credit risk and volatility. Changes in assumptions about these
factors could affect the reported fair value of financial instruments.

3. Significant Accounting Policies

3.1

3.2

Functional and presentation currency

These financial statements are presented in Indian Rupees (INR), which is also the Company’s functional
currency. All amounts have been rounded-off to the nearest lakhs, unless otherwise indicated.

Property, plant and equipment

All other items of property, plant and equipment are stated at historical cost less depreciation. Historical
cost includes expenditure that is directly attributable to the acquisition of the items. The gain or loss arising
on the disposal or retirement of an item of property, plant and equipment is determined as the difference
between the sales proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and is recognized in the Statement of Profit
and Loss on the date of disposal or retirement.

Subsequent costs are capitalised on the carrying amount or recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate,
only when future economic benefits associated with the item are probable to flow to the Company and cost
of the item can be measured reliably. All other repair and maintenance are charged to the statement of
profit and loss during the reporting period in which they are incurred.




Intermetal Engineers (India) Private Limited
(All amounts are in INR lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

Notes to the financial statement for the year ended 31 March 2023

3.3

34

3.5

Depreciation on property, plant and equipment is provided on straight-line basis over the useful lives of
assets as determined on the basis of technical estimates which are similar to the useful lives as prescribed
under Schedule II to the Companies Act, 2013. Based on past experience and internal technical evaluation,
the management believes that these useful lives represent the appropriate period of usage and therefore,
considered to be appropriate for charging depreciation. Depreciation on addition (disposal) is provided on a
pro-rata basis i.e. from (upto) the date on which assets is ready for use (disposed of).

Assets residual values, depreciation method and useful lives are reviewed at the end of financial year
considering the physical condition of the assets or whenever there are indicators for review and adjusts
residual life prospectively.

Gains and losses on disposals are determined by comparing proceeds with carrying amount. These are
included in the statement of profit and loss within other income.

Intangible Assets

Identifiable intangible assets are recognised when the Company controls the asset, it is probable that future
economic benefits attributed to the asset will flow to the Company and the cost of the asset can be reliably
measured,

At initial recognition, the separately acquired intangible assets are recognised at cost. Following initial
recognition, the intangible assets are carried at cost less any accumulated amortisation and accumulated
impairment losses, if any.

Amortisation is recognised in statement of profit and loss on a straight-line basis over the estimated useful
lives of intangible assets from the date they are available for use. The amortisation period and the
amortisation method are reviewed at least at each financial year end. If the expected useful life of the asset
is significantly different from previous estimates, the amortisation period is changed accordingly. Gains or
losses arising from the retirement or disposal of an intangible asset are determined as the difference
between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and recognised as income or
expense in the statement of profit and loss.

Assets held for sale

Non-current assets, or disposal groups are classified as held for sale if its carrying amount will be
recovered principally through sale rather than through continuing use, it is available for immediate sale and
sale is highly probable within one year.

On initial classification as held for sale, assets and disposal groups are measured at the lower of previous
carrying amount and fair value less costs to sell with any adjustments taken to the statement of profit and
loss. The same applies to gains and losses on subsequent remeasurement although gains are not recognised
in excess of any cumulative impairment loss. Any impairment loss on a disposal group is first allocated to
goodwill, and then to remaining assets and liabilities on a pro-rata basis, except that no loss is allocated to
inventories, financial assets, deferred tax assets, employee benefit assets and investment property, which
continue to be measured in accordance with the accounting policies. Intangible assets and property, plant
and equipment once classified as held for sale or distribution are not amortised or depreciated.

Foreign currency translation

Initial recognition

Foreign currency transactions are recorded in the reporting currency, by applying to the foreign currency
amount the exchange rate between the reporting currency and the foreign currency at the date of the
transaction.




Intermetal Engineers (India) Private Limited
(All amounts are in INR lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

Notes to the financial statement for the year ended 31 March 2023

3.6

Conversion

Foreign currency monetary items are reported using the closing rate. Non-monetary items which are
carried in terms of historical cost denominated in a foreign currency are reported using the exchange rate at
the date of the transaction. Non-monetary items, which are measured at fair value or other similar valuation
denominated in a foreign currency, are translated using the exchange rate at the date when such value was
determined.

Exchange differences

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary items or on reporting monetary items of
Company at rates different from those at which they were initially recorded during the year, or reported in
previous financial statements, are recognised as income or as expenses in the year in which they arise
except those arising from investments in non-integral operations.

Taxes
Tax expense comprises of current and deferred tax.

The income tax expense or credit for the period is the tax payable on the current period’s taxable income
based on the applicable income tax rate adjusted by changes in deferred tax assets and liabilities
attributable to temporary differences and to unused tax losses.

The current income tax charge is calculated on the basis of the tax laws enacted or substantively enacted at
the end of the reporting period. Management periodically evaluates positions taken in tax returns with
respect to situations in which applicable tax regulation is subject to interpretation. It establishes provisions
where appropriate on the basis of amounts expected to be paid to the tax authorities.

Deferred income tax is provided in full, using the liability method, on temporary differences arising
between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts in the financial statements.
Deferred income tax is determined using tax rates (and laws) that have been enacted or substantially
enacted by the end of the reporting period and are expected to apply when the related deferred income tax
asset is realised or the deferred income tax liability is settled.

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary differences and unused tax losses only if it
is probable that future taxable amounts will be available to utilise those temporary differences and losses.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a legally enforceable right to offset current tax
assets and liabilities and when the deferred tax balances relate to the same taxation authority. Current tax
assets and tax liabilities are offset where the entity has a legally enforceable right to offset and intends
either to settle on a net basis, or to realise the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.

Current and deferred tax is recognised in the statement of profit and loss, except to the extent that it relates
to items recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in equity. In this case, the tax is also
recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in equity respectively.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the end of each reporting period and reduced to
the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available to allow all or part of
the asset to be recovered.

Minimum alternate tax (MAT) paid in a year is charged to the Statement of profit and loss as current tax.
Minimum Alternative Tax (“MAT”) credit is recognised as deferred tax asset based on evidence that the
Company will pay normal income tax during the specified period. Significant judgments are involved in
determining the future taxable income and future book profits, including amount of MAT credit available
for set-off.

&




Intermetal Engineers (India) Private Limited
(All amounts are in INR lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

Notes to the financial statement for the year ended 31 March 2023

3.7

3.8

3.9

Inventories

Inventories are valued at the lower of cost (on first in first out basis in respect of trading goods and on
weighted average basis in respect of raw materials, work-in-progress and finished goods) and the net
realisable value after providing for obsolescence and other losses, where considered necessary, Cost
includes all charges in bringing the goods, including freight, octroi and other levies. Net realisable v-alue is
the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business less the estimated cost of completion and the
estimated costs necessary to make the sale. Stores and spares inventory is valued at cost.

Revenue recognition

Revenue from contract with customers is recognized when the Company satisfies the performance
obligation by transfer of control of promised product or service to customers in an amount that reflects the
consideration which the Company expects to receive in exchange for those products or services. Control is
defined as the ability to direct the use of and obtain substantially all of the economic benefits from am asset.
Revenue excludes taxes collected from customers.

Revenue is measured based on the transaction price, which is the expected consideration to be received, to
the extent that it is highly probable that there will not be a significant reversal of revenue in future periods.
If the consideration in a contract includes a variable amount, at the inception of the contract, the Company
estimates the amount of consideration to which it will be entitled in exchange for transferring the goods or
services to the customer.

At the inception of the contract, the Company identifies the goods or services promised in the contract and
assess which of the promised goods or services shall be identified as separate performance obligations,
Promised goods or services give rise to separate performance obligations if they are capable of being
distinct.

Revenue from the delivery of products is recognised at the point in time when control over the products is
passed to the customers, which is determined based on the individual Incoterms agreed in the customer
contract,

Contract balances:

The Company classifies the right to consideration in exchange for deliverables as either a receivable or as
unbilled revenue. A receivable is a right to consideration that is unconditional upon passage of time.
Contract asset, which is presented as unbilled revenue, is classified as non-financial asset as the contractual
right to consideration is dependent on completion of contractual milestones.

A contract liability is the obligation to transfer goods or services to a customer for which the Company has
received consideration (or an amount of consideration is due) from the customer. If a customer pays
consideration before the Company transfers goods or services to the customer, a contract liability is
recognised when the payment is made or the payment is due (whichever is earlier). Contract liabilities are
recognised as revenue when the Company performs under the contract. Contract liabilities include, and are
presented as ‘Revenue received in advance’ and ‘Advances from customers’.

Other Income

Dividend income

Dividend income is recognised when the Company’s right to receive dividend is established by the
reporting date. The right to receive dividend is generally established when shareholders approve the
dividend.




Intermetal Engineers (India) Private Limited
(All amounts are in INR lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

Notes to the financial statement for the year ended 31 March 2023

Interest income
Interest income is recognized as it accrues in the statement of profit and loss using effective interest rate
method.

Net gain loss on fair value change

The Company recognises gains on fair value change of financial assets measured at FVTPL and realised
gains on derecognition of financial asset measured at FVTPL on net basis. However, net gain / loss on
derecognition of financial instruments classified as amortised cost is presented separately under the
respective head in the statement of profit and loss.

3.10 Financial instruments:

A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a financial
liability or equity instrument of another entity.

Financial assets

Initial recognition and measurement

All financial assets are recognised initially at fair value plus, in the case of financial assets not recorded
at fair value through profit and loss, transaction costs that are attributable to the acquisition of the
financial asset.

Subsequent measurement

For purposes of subsequent measurement, financial assets are classified as:

e Debt instruments assets at amortised cost

¢ Equity instrument measured at fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL)

When assets are measured at fair value, gains and losses are either recognised entirely in the statement
of profit and loss (i.e. fair value through profit and loss), or recognised in other comprehensive income
(i.e. fair value through other comprehensive income).

Debt instruments at amortised cost

A debt instrument is measured at amortised cost (net of any write down for impairment) if both the

following conditions are met:

* the asset is held to collect the contractual cash flows (rather than to sell the instrument prior to its
contractual maturity to realise its fair value changes), and

* the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely
payments of principal and interest (“SPPI”) on the principal amount outstanding.

Such financial assets are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest rate (EIR)
method. Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and
fees or costs that are an integral part of the EIR. The EIR amortisation is included in finance income in
the profit and loss. The losses arising from impairment are recognised statement of profit and loss. This
category generally applies to trade and other receivables

Financial assets at fair value through OCI (FVTOCI)

A financial asset that meets the following two conditions is measured at fair value through OCI unless

the asset is designated at fair value through profit and loss under fair value option.

*  The financial asset is held both to collect contractual cash flows and to sell.

*  The contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely
payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.




Intermetal Engineers (India) Private Limited
(All amounts are in INR lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

Notes to the financial statement for the year ended 31 March 2023

Instruments included within the FVTOCI category are measured initially as well as at each reporting
date at fair value. Fair value movements are recognized in OCI. However, the Company recognizes
interest income, impairment losses & reversals and foreign exchange gain or loss in the Profit and Loss.
On derecognition of the asset, cumulative gain or loss previously recognised in OCI is reclassified from
the equity to Profit and Loss. Interest earned whilst holding FVTOCI debt instrument is reported as
interest income using the EIR method.

Financial assets at fair value through profit and loss (FVTPL)
FVTPL is a residual category for company’s investment instruments. Any instruments which does not
meet the criteria for categorization as at amortized cost or as FVTOCI, is classified as at FVTPL.

All investments included within the FVTPL category are measured at fair value with all changes
recognized in the Profit and Loss

In addition, the company may elect to designate an instrument, which otherwise meets amortized cost or
FVTOCI criteria, as at FVTPL. However, such election is allowed only if doing so reduces or
eliminates a measurement or recognition inconsistency (referred to as ‘accounting mismatch’).

Equity investments

All equity investments in scope of Ind AS 109 are measured at fair value. Equity instruments which are
held for trading are classified as at FVTPL. For all other equity instruments, the Company may make an
irrevocable election to present in other comprehensive income subsequent changes in the fair value, The
Company has not made any such election. This classification is made on initial recognition and is
irrevocable.

If the Company decides to classify an equity instrument as at FVOCI, then all fair value changes on the
instrument, excluding dividends, are recognized in the OCI. There is no recycling of the amounts from
OCI to P&L, even on sale of investment, However, the Company may transfer the cumulative gain or
loss within equity.

Equity instruments included within the FVTPL category are measured at fair value with all changes
recognized in the P&L.

Equity investment in subsidiary are measured at cost.

Derecognition

When the Company has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from the asset or has assumed an
obligation to pay the received cash flows in full without material delay to a third party under a ‘pass-
through’ arrangement; it evaluates if and to what extent it has retained the risks and rewards of
ownership.

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset or part of a Company of similar
financial assets) is primarily derecognised when:
®  The rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired, or
e Based on above evaluation, either
(a) the Company has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, or
(b) the Company has neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the
asset, but has transferred control of the asset.




Intermetal Engineers (India) Private Limited
(All amounts are in INR lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

Notes to the financial statement for the year ended 31 March 2023

When it has neither transferred nor retained substantially all of the risks and rewards of the asset, nor
transferred control of the asset, the Company continues to recognise the transferred asset to the extent of
the Company’s continuing involvement. In that case, the Company also recognises an associated
liability. The transferred asset and the associated liability are measured on a bases that reflect the rights
and obligations that the Company has retained.

Continuing involvement that takes the form of a guarantee over the transferred asset is measured at the
lower of the original carrying amount of the asset and the maximum amount of consideration that the
Company could be required to repay.

Impairment of financial assets

The Company assesses at each date of balance sheet whether a financial asset or a group of financial
assets is impaired. Ind AS 109 (‘Financial instruments’) requires expected credit losses to be measured
through a loss allowance. The Company recognizes lifetime expected losses for all contract assets and /
or all trade receivables that do not constitute a financing transaction. For all other financial assets,
expected credit losses are measured at an amount equal to the 12-month expected credit losses or at an
amount equal to the life time expected credit losses if the credit risk on the financial asset has increased
significantly since initial recognition.

ii. Financial liabilities

Initial recognition and measurement
Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition, as financial liabilities at fair value through profit
and loss or at amortised cost, as appropriate.

All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value and, in the case of loans and borrowings, net
of directly attributable transaction costs.

The Company’s financial liabilities include trade payables and other payables.

Subsequent measurement
The measurement of financial liabilities depends on their classification, as described below:

Financial liabilities at amortised cost

After initial recognition, interest-bearing loans and borrowings and other payables are subsequently
measured at amortised cost using the EIR method. Gains and losses are recognised in profit and loss
when the liabilities are derecognised as well as through the EIR amortisation process.

Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees or
costs that are an integral part of the EIR. The EIR amortisation is included as finance costs in the
statement of profit and loss.

Derecognition

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled or
expires. When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same lender on substantially
different terms, or the terms of an existing liability are substantially modified, such an exchange or
modification is treated as the derecognition of the original liability and the recognition of a new
liability. The difference in the respective carrying amounts is recognised in the statement of profit and
loss.

137904w/
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Intermetal Engineers (India) Private Limited
(All amounts are in INR lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

Notes to the financial statement for the year ended 31 March 2023

iii. Offsetting of financial instruments
Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the balance sheet if
there is a currently enforceable legal right to offset the recognised amounts and there is an intemtion to
settle on a net basis, to realise the assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously.

iv. Reclassification of financial assets

The Company determines classification of financial assets and liabilities on initial recognition. After
initial recognition, no reclassification is made for financial assets which are equity instrumemts and
financial liabilities. For financial assets which are debt instruments, a reclassification is made only if
there is a change in the business model for managing those assets. Changes to the business moclel are
expected to be infrequent. The Company’s senior management determines change in the business model
as a result of external or internal changes which are significant to the Company’s operations. Such
changes are evident to external parties. A change in the business model occurs when the Comnpany
either begins or ceases to perform an activity that is significant to its operations. If the Comnpany
reclassifies financial assets, it applies the reclassification prospectively from the reclassification date
which is the first day of the immediately next reporting period following the change in business model.
The Company does not restate any previously recognised gains, losses (including impairment gains or
losses) or interest.

3.11 Impairment of non-financial assets

Non-financial assets including Property, plant and equipment with finite life are evaluated for
recoverability whenever there is any indication that their carrying amounts may not be recoverable. If any
such indication exists, the recoverable amount (i.e. higher of the fair value less cost to sell and the val ue-in-
use) is determined on an individual asset basis unless the asset does not generate cash flows that are largely
independent of those from other assets. In such cases, the recoverable amount is determined for the CGU to
which the asset belongs.

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or CGU) is estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the carrying
amount of the asset (or CGU) is reduced to its recoverable amount. An impairment loss is recognised in the
statement of profit and loss.

For assets excluding goodwill, an assessment is made at each reporting date to determine whether there is
an indication that previously recognised impairment losses no longer exist or have decreased. If such
indication exists, the Company estimates the asset’s or CGU’s recoverable amount. A previously
recognised impairment loss is reversed only if there has been a change in the assumptions used to
determine the asset’s recoverable amount since the last impairment loss was recognised. The reversal is
limited so that the carrying amount of the asset does not exceed its recoverable amount, nor exceed the
carrying amount that would have been determined, net of depreciation, had no impairment loss been
recognised for the asset in prior years. Such reversal is recognised in the statement of profit and loss unless
the asset is carried at a revalued amount, in which case, the reversal is treated as a revaluation increase,

3.12 Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at bank, cash in hand and short-term investments with an original
maturity of three months or less, which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value.

For the purpose of the statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents consist of cash and short-term
deposits, as defined above, net of outstanding bank overdrafts as they are considered an integral part of the
Company’s cash management.
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3.13 Provisions, contingent liabilities and contingent assets

Provisions are recognised when the Company has a present legal or constructive obligation as a result of
past events, it is probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation and the
amount can be reliably estimated. Provisions are not recognised for future operating losses. Provision are
measured at the present value of management’s best estimate of the expenditure required to settle the
present obligation at the end of the reporting period. Provisions are reviewed at each balance sheet date and
adjusted to reflect the current best estimates.

If the effect of the time value of money is material, provisions are discounted using a current pre-tax rate
that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the liability.
The increase in the provision due to the passage of time is recognised as finance cost.

Contingent liabilities are disclosed when there is a possible obligation arising from past events, the
existence of which will be confirmed only by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain
future events not wholly within the control of the Company or a present obligation that arises from past
events where it is either not probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle or a reliable
estimate of the amount cannot be made. Information on contingent liability is disclosed in the Notes to the
Financial Statements

Contingent assets are not recognized in the financial statements. However, it is disclosed only when an
inflow of economic benefits is probable.

3.14 Government grants

Grants from the government are recognised where there is reasonable assurance that the grant will be
received and the Company will comply with required conditions. Export incentive under Merchandise
Exports from India Scheme (MEIS) and duty drawback are accrued when no significant uncertainties as to
the amount of consideration that would be derived and as to its ultimate collection exist.

3.15 Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of qualifying assets,
which are assets that necessarily take a substantial period of time to get ready for their intended use or sale,
are added to the cost of those assets, until such time as the assets are substantially ready for their intended
use or sale.

Interest income earned on the temporary investment of specific borrowings pending their expenditure on
qualifying assets is deducted from the borrowing costs eligible for capitalisation.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in the statement of profit and loss in the period in which they are
incurred.

3.16 Employee benefits

(i) Short-term employee benefits:

All employee benefits payable wholly within twelve months of rendering the service are classified as
short-term employee benefits. All short-term employee benefits are accounted on undiscounted basis
during the accounting period based on services rendered by employees and recognized as expenses in
the Statement of profit and loss. A liability is recognised for the amount expected to be paid if the
Company has a present legal or constructive obligation to pay this amount as a result of past service
provided by the employee and the obligation can be estimated reliably. These benefits include salary
and wages, bonus, performance incentives, etc.




Intermetal Engineers (India) Private Limited
(All amounts are in INR lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

Notes to the financial statement for the year ended 31 March 2023

(i)

(iif)

Long-term employee benefits (Post-employment benefits):
The Company participates in various employee benefit plans. Post-employment benefits are classified
as either defined contribution plans or defined benefit plans.

Defined contribution plans:

Retirement benefit in the form of provident fund, pension fund and employees’ state insurance scheme
are defined contribution schemes. The Company has no obligation, other than the contribution payable
to the fund. Payments to defined contribution plan are recognised as an expense in the statement of
profit and loss when employees have rendered service entitling them to the contributions.

Defined benefit plans — Gratuity:

The liability recognised in the balance sheet is the present value of the defined benefit obligation at
the end of the reporting period less the fair value of plan assets. The defined benefit obligation is
calculated annually by actuaries using the projected unit credit method.

The present value is determined by discounting the estimated future cash outflows by reference to
market yields at the end of the reporting period on government bonds that have terms approximating
to the terms of the related obligation.

The net interest cost is calculated by applying the discount rate to the net balance of the defined
benefit obligation and the fair value of plan assets. This cost is included in employee benefit expense
in the statement of profit and loss.

Remeasurement gains and losses arising from experience adjustments and changes in actuarial
assumptions are recognised in the period in which they occur, directly in other comprehensive income.
They are included in retained earnings in the statement of changes in equity and in the balance sheet.

Changes in the present value of the defined benefit obligation resulting from plan amendments or
curtailments are recognised immediately in profit or loss as past service cost.

Other benefits (Compensated absences):

Accumulated compensated absences, which are expected to be availed or encashed within 12 months
from the end of the year end are treated as short term employee benefits. The obligation towards the
same is measured at the expected cost of accumulating compensated absences as a result of the unused
entitlement as at the year end.

Accumulated compensated absences, which are expected to be availed or encashed beyond 12 months
from the end of the year end are treated as other long term employee benefits. The Company’s liability
is actuarially determined (using the Projected Unit Credit method) at the end of each year. Actuarial
losses/ gains are recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss in the year in which they arise. The
obligations are presented as current liabilities in the balance sheet if the entity does not have an
unconditional right to defer settlement for at least twelve months after the reporting period, regardless
of when the actual settlement is expected to occur.

3.17 Leases
As a lessee
Leases are recognised as a Right-of-Use (RoU) asset at cost with a corresponding lease liability, except for
leases with term of less than twelve months (short term) and low-value assets in accordance with Ind AS
116 ‘Leases’.

The cost of the right-of-use assets comprises the amount of the initial measurement of the lease liability,
any lease payments made at or before the inception date of the lease plus any initial direct costs etc.
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Subsequently, the right-of-use asset is measured at cost less any accumulated depreciation and accumulated
impairment losses, if any. The right-of-use asset is depreciated using the straight-line method from the
commencement date over the shorter of lease term or useful life of right-of-use assets.

For lease liabilities at the commencement date, the Company measures the lease liability at the present
value of the lease payments that are not paid at that date. The lease payments are discounted using the
interest rate implicit in the lease, if that rate is readily determined, if that rate is not readily determimed, the
lease payments are discounted using the incremental borrowing rate.

For short-term and low value leases, the Company recognizes the lease payments as an operating e xpense
in the Statement of Profit and Loss on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

3.18 Borrowings

Borrowings are initially recognised at fair value, net of transaction costs incurred. Borrowings are
subsequently measured at amortised cost. Any difference between the proceeds (net of transaction costs)
and the redemption amount is recognised in the statement of profit and loss over the period of the
borrowings using the effective interest method.

Borrowings are removed from the balance sheet when the obligation specified in the contract is discharged,
cancelled or expired. The difference between the carrying amount of a financial liability that has been
extinguished or transferred to another party and the consideration paid, including any non-cash assets
transferred or liabilities assumed, is recognised in the statement of profit and loss as other gains/(losses).

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless the Company has an unconditional right to defer
settlement of the liability for at least 12 months after the reporting period.

3.19 Earnings per share

Basic earnings per share are calculated by dividing the net profit or loss for the period attributable to equity
shareholders by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the period.

For the purpose of calculating diluted earnings per share, the net profit or loss for the period attributable to
equity shareholders and the weighted average number of shares outstanding during the period are adjusted
for the effects of all dilutive potential equity shares.

3.20 Trade and other payables
These amounts represent liabilities for goods and services provided to the Company prior to the end of the
financial year which are unpaid. Trade and other payables are presented as current liabilities unless

payment is not due within 12 months after the reporting period.

3.21 Dividends

Provision is made for the amount of any dividend declared, being appropriately authorized and no longer at
the discretion of the Company, on or before the end of the reporting period but not distributed at the end of
the reporting period.

3.22 Segment reporting

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with the internal reporting provided to the Chief
Operating Decision Maker.
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Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2023

5 Intangible assets
Particulars Softwares
Gross block:
As at 01 April 2021 1.10
Additions .
Disposals -
As at 31 March 2022 1.10

Additions ’
Disposals
As at 31 March 2023 1.10

Accumulated amortization:
As at 01 April 2021 "

Charge for the year 0.21
Disposals -
As at 31 March 2022 0.21
Charge for the year 0.21
Disposals 5
As at 31 March 2023 0.42
Net block:

As at 31 March 2022 0.89
As at 31 March 2023 0.68
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6

10

12

13

Other non-current assets
Particulars As at As at
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Prepaid expenses - 0,08
Security deposits 0.09 0.09
0.09 0.17
Inventories
(At cost or net realisable value whichever is lower)
Particulars As at As at
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Raw materials 7.30 .73
Work in progress 12.85 9.46
Finished goods {including goods-in-transit of Rs Nil (31 March 33.30 16,00
2022: Rs Nil)}
53.45 33,19
——=
Trade receivables
Particulars As at As at
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Unsecured, considered good:
Receivables from related parties (Refer note 40) 20.46 -
Receivables from others 32.51 88.07
5297 88.07
Less: Allowance for expected credit loss (0.54) -
28 _ 88,07
Refer note 35 for information about credit risk and market risk of trade receivables.
For trade receivable ageing, refer note 42.
Cash and cash equivalents
Particulars Asat As at
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Cash on hand 033 0.10
Balances with banks
In current accounts 20.64 16,48
In deposit accounts (with original maturity of less than 3 months) 980,00 640.00
1,000.97 656.58
Bank balances other than cash and cash equivalents above
Particulars As at As at
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Deposits with original maturity of more than three months but less than 12 months - 60.00
- 60.00
=
Other financial assets (Current)
Particulars As at As at
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Unsecured, considered good:
Loan and advance to employees 0.10 -
Interest accrued on deposits 5.58 2.55
5.68 2.55
Refer note 35 for information about credit risk and market risk of other financial assets.
Current tax assets (net)
Particulars As at As at
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Advance tax and tax deducted at source, net of provision 27.44 27.44
27.44 27.44
Other current assets
Particulars As at As at
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Balances with government authorities 0.03 -
Advance to suppliers 0.13 -
Prepaid expenses 0.82
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Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2023

14 Equity share capital
Particulars As at As at
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Authorised:
5,000 (31 March 2022: 5,000) equity shares of Rs. 100 each 5.00 5.00
500 XN
Issued, subscribed and paid-up:
1,597 (31 March 2022: 1,597) equity shares of Rs. 100 each, fully paid-up 1.60 1.60
Y] X
a) Reconciliation of the number of shares outstanding at the beginning and at the end of the period/year:
Particulars As at 31 March 2023 As at 31 March 2022
No. of shares Amount _No. of shares Amount
Outstanding as at the beginning of the year 1,597 1.60 1,597 1.60
Add: Share issued during the year - = - .
Outstanding as at the end of the year 1,597 1.60 1,597 1,60
b) Rights, prefi and restrictions attached to the equity shares:

The Company has single class of equity shares having a par value of Rs. 100 each. Each holder of equity shares is entitled to one vote per share. In the event of” liquidation of the

Company, the holders of equity shares will be entitled to receive any of the remaining assets of the C

be in proportion to the number of equity shares held by the shareholders.

¢) Details of shares held by the holding company

—

Thee distribution will

y, after distribution of all preferential

Particulars

As at 31 March 2023 As at 31 March 2022

Equity shares of Rs 100 each fully paid-up held by
M/s RHI Magnesita India Limited (formerly known as Orient Refractories Limited)
(including 1 share held by Mr. Pramod Sagar as nominee)

d) List of shareholders holding more than 5% shares of a class of shares

No. of shares % Holding No. of shares % Holding
1,597 100.00% 1,597 100.00%

Particulars

As at 31 March 2023 As at 31 March 2022

No. of shares % Holding No. of shares % Holding
Equity shares of Rs 100 each fully paid-up held by
M/s RHI Magnesita India Limited (formerly known as Orient Refractories Limited) 1,597 100.00% 1,597 100.00%
(including 1 share held by Mr. Pramod Sagar as nominee)

¢) Disclosure of shareholding of promoters

Equity shares of Rs 100 each fully paid-up
Promoter's name Shareholding % change during the year

No. of shares | % of total shares No. of shares %o of total shares
M/s RHI Magnesita India Limited (formerly known as Orient Refractories Limited) 1,597 100.00% - -
(including 1 share held by Mr. Pramod Sagar as nominee) (1,597) -100.00%

(figures in bracket denote previous year figures)

) The Company has not allotted any fully paid-up equity share by way of bonus shares, or in pursuant to contract without payment being received in cash.

g) The Company bought back 903 number of shares in aggregate during the five years immediately preceding the balance sheet date. 625 number of shares were bought back by
the Company on 21 February 2017 at a buy-back price of Rs 30,720 per share. 278 number of shares were bought back by the Company on 14 June 2018 at a buy-back price of

Rs 65,045 per share.
15 Other equity

Particulars As at As at
31 March 2023 31 March 2022

Retained eamings 1,324.29 1,145.63

Capital redemption reserve 0.91 0.91

lgzs.zu 1,146.54

Retained earnings

Balance at the beginning of the year 1,145.63 1,045.12

Add: Profit for the year 178.66 10051

Balance at the end of the year 1,324.29 1,145.63

Capital redemption reserve

Balance at the beginning of the year 091 0.91

Add: Addition during the year ? :

Balance at the end of the year 0.91 0.91

Retained earnings:

Retained earnings rep surplus / accumulated earnings of the Company and are available for distribution to sharehold

Capital redemption reserve:
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16 Provisions (Non-current)

Particulars As at As at
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Provision for employee benefits:
Gratuity (Refer note 33) 034 2,19
Leave obligation (Refer note 33) 1.76 1,25
210 —idd
17 Deferred tax liabilities (net)
Particulars As at As at
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Deferred tax liabilities:
Property, plant and equipment 40.28 75.12
Total deferred tax liabilities - (A) 40.28 75.12
Deferred tax assets:
Allowance for expected credit loss 0.14 -
Expenses allowed on payment basis under Income-tax Act 232 2.54
Total deferred tax assets - (B) 2.46 2.54
Deferred tax liabilities (net) - (A-B) 37.82 72.58
18 Trade payables
Particulars As at As at
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Total outstanding dues to micro and small enterprises (Refer note 32) 31.79 46,36
Total outstanding dues to creditors other than micro and small enterprises 6.19 4.21
37._?8 Sﬂi
For trade payable ageing, refer note 43,
19 Other financial liabilities (Current)
Particulars As at Asat
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Employee dues payable 7.11 3.71
7.11 3.71
—iiii-}
20 Contract liabilities
Particulars As at As at
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Advance from customers 4.14 1.26
4.14 1.26
21 Provisions (Current)
Particulars As at As at
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Provision for employee benefits:
Gratuity (Refer note 33) 0.38 2.42
Leave obligation (Refer note 33) 0.54 0.56
Oi92 2.98
22 Current tax liabilities (net)
Particulars As at As at
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Provision for taxation, net of advance tax 2.21 2.32
2.21 2.32
= =—
23 Other current liabilities
Particulars As at As at
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Statutory liabilities 3.96 8.76
3.96 8.76
=
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24 Revenue from operations

Particulars For the year ended 31 For the year ended
March 2023 31 March 2022
Revenue from contract with customers:
- from related parties (Refer note 40) 78.75 12.63
- from others 454.34 443.23
533.09 455,86
Other operating revenue:
Government incentives on export 0.52 0.12
53351 45598

Disageregation of revenue:
In the following tables, revenue is disaggregated by product group and by geography. The Company believes that this disaggregation best depicts
how the nature, amount, timing and uncertainty of our revenues and cash flows are affected by industry, market and other economic factors,

Particulars For the year ended 31  For the year ended
March 2023 31 March 2022
Shaped products 533.10 455,86
Others 0.52 0.12
5362 45598
Particulars For the year ended 31  For the year ended
March 2023 31 March 2022
Within India * 485.02 442,46
Outside India 48.59 13.52
33361 435,08

* Inclusive of merchant export of Rs 51.58 lakhs during the year (Previous year: Rs 25.87 lakhs)

Timing of ol .
Revenue from sale of products is transferred to the customers at a point in time.

Performance obligations

Revenue from the sale of products is recognised at the point in time when control over the products is passed to the customers, which is
determined based on the individual Incoterms agreed in the customer contract. Control is defined as the ability to direct the use and obtain
substantially all the economic benefits from an asset.

ge for ferring goods or services, to the extent that it is highly probable
For the year ended 31  For the year ended
March 2023 31 March 2022
Contract price 533.61 45598
Adjustments for:
Claims and rebates - &
Performance bonus & -
533.61 455.98

Trade receivables and contract balances:

The Company classifies the right to consideration in exchange for deliverables as cither a receivable or as contract asset.

A receivable is a right to consideration that is unconditional upon passage of time.
Contract assets primarily relate to the Company's right to consid
transferred to receivables when the right become unconditional.

Contract liabilities consists of advance from customers. Contract liabilities are presented in note 20.

Trade receivables are d net off loss all in note 8.

P

Movement in contract balances:

for work completed but not billed at the reporting date. Contract assets are

Particulars

For the year ended 31
March 2023

Revenue recognised that was included in the contract liability balance at
the beginning of the year

Revenue from contract with customers

Total

Movement in contract assets:

Opening balance at the beginning of the year
Add: Revenue recognized during the year
Less: Invoiced during the year

Closing balance at the end of the year

Movement in contract liabilities:
Opening balance at the beginning of the year
Add: Collection during the year
Less: Gross Sales

Less: Sundry balances written back
Closing balance at the end of the yes

For the year ended
31 March 2022

2.72

27

1.26
214.31
211.23

0.19

5.64
234.59
23727

4.14
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25 Other income

Particulars For the year ended 31  For the year ended
March 2023 31 March 2022
Interest on term deposits 3497 2207
Interest on sales tax refund - 0.46
Sundry balances written back 0.20 2.23
Profit on sale of property, plant and equipment 75.70 -
Allowance for expected credit loss no longer required written back - 1.56
Gain on redemption of mutual fund units 0.32 1.12
Miscellaneous income - 0.01
Bad debis recovery 0.01 -
111,20 27.46
26 Cost of materials consumed
Particulars For the year ended 31 For the year ended
March 2023 31 March 2022
Inventory of materials at the beginning of the year 1.1 5.03
Add: Purchases 321.14 227.69
328.87 23m
Less: Inventory of materials at the end of the year 7.30 7.73
321.57 224,99
27 Changes in inventories of finished goods and work-in-progress
Particulars For the year ended 31  For the year ended
March 2023 31 March 2022
(Increase) / Decrease in inventories
Inventory at the end of the year:
Work in progress 12.85 9.46
Finished goods 3330 16.00
46.15 25.46
Inventory at the beginning of the year:
Work in progress 9.46 3.30
Finished goods 16.00 40.96
25.46 44.26
e 1850
28 Employee benefits exp
Particulars For the year ended 31  For the year ended
March 2023 31 March 2022
Salaries and wages 4241 4343
Contribution to provident and other funds (Refer note 33) 3.28 4.02
Gratuity (Refer note 33) 1.68 1.39
Leave obligation (Refer note 33) 0.49 0.41
Staff welfare expense 1.76 1.82
962 5197
29 Depreciation and amortization expense
Particulars For the year ended 31 For the year ended
March 2023 31 March 2022
Depreciation on property, plant and equipment 18.07 18.83
Amortization on intangible assets 0.21 0.21
18.28 1904
30 Other expenses
Particulars For the year ended 31 For the year ended
March 2023 31 March 2022
Foreign exchange loss (net) 0.54 0.05
Power and fuel 1.57 1.32
Legal and professional fees 1.78 6.45
Director sitting fees 1.50 1.00
Computer expenses 1.80 1.98
Repair and maintenance
- building 027 0.22
- plant and machinery 0.02 0.29
- others 0.45 0.41
Postage and communication 0.83 0.44
Travelling and conveyance 6.05 898
Internet charges 137904w/ 0.08 0.17
Insurance W100622 0.52 0.57
Rates and taxes 0.58 0.84
Payment to auditors (Refer note 39) 5.93 3.90
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Bad debts written off

Sundry balances written off

Bank charges
Printing and stationery

Freight and transport charges
Allowance for expected credit loss
Office expenses

Miscellaneous expenses

- 1.19
- 0.48
031 0.10
1.15 0.92
9.42 6.97
0.54 -

0.58 1.46
231 0.29

3633 380
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31 Income tax
The major components of income tax expense for the years ended 31 March 2023 and 31 March 2022 are:
Statement of profit and loss section

Particulars " For the yearended  For the year ended
31 March 2023 31 Maarch 2022
Current income tax:
Current income tax charge 97.22 38,30
Adjustment in respect of current tax of previous years (1.59) (4.19)
Deferred tax:
Relating to origination and reversal of temporary differences (34.69) (3.87)
Income tax expense reported in the statement of profit and loss 60,94 30.23
Other comprehensive income section
Income tax relating to items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss 0.07 0.25
60.87 29,98
Reconciliation of tax expense and the accounting profit multiplied by India's domestic tax rate for the year ended
Particulars For the year ended  For the year ended
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Accounting profit before tax 239.80 131.50
Computed tax expense 60.35 33.09
At India's statutory income tax rate of 25.168% (31 March 2022: 25. 168%)
Adjustments for:
Tax effect of amounts which are not deductible (taxable) in calculating income (net) 0.14 0.12
Adjustment in respect of current tax of previous years (1.59) (4.19)
Difference in tax rate - (0.15)
Others 1.98 111
At the effective income tax rate 60.87 29.98
Income tax expense reported in the statement of profit and loss 60.87 29,98
Deferred tax relates to the following
Particulars Balance sheet Statement of profit and loss /
Other Comprehensive income
As at Asat  For the year ended  For the year ended
31 March 2023 31 March 2022 31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Property, plant and equipment (40.28) (75.12) 34.84 4.79
Allowance for expected credit loss 0.14 - 0.14 (0.39)
Expenses allowed on payment basis under Income-tax Act 232 254 (0.22) (0.27)
Net deferred tax expense / (income) 34.76 4,13
Net deferred tax assets / (liabilities) (37.82) (72.58)
Reflected in the balance sheet as follows
Particulars As at As at
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Deferred tax liabilities (40.28) (75.12)
Deferred tax assets 246 2,54
Deferred tax liabilities, net (37.82) (72.58)
Reconciliation of deferred tax (liabilities) / assets, net
Particulars Asat As at
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Opening balance as of April 1 (72.58) (76.71)
Tax (income) / expense during the year recognised in statement of profit and loss (34.69) (3.87)
Tax (income) / expense during the year recognised in other comprehensive income (0.07) (0.25)
Closing balance (37.82) (72.58)

The Company offsets tax assets and liabilities if and only if it has a legally enforceable right to set off current tax assets and current tax liabilities and the

deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities relate to income taxes levied by the same tax authority.

137904W/
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32 Dues to micro and small enterprises

Particulars For the year ended 31 For the year ended 31
March 2023 Mawch 2022

(i) Principal amount due to suppliers registered under the MSMED Act and remaining unpaid as 30.27 44.84
at period end

(ii) Interest due to suppliers registered under the MSMED Act and remaining unpaid as at year - .
end

(iii) Principal amount paid to supplier registered under the MSMED Act, beyond the appointed - -
day during the year.

(iv) Interest paid, other than under Section 16 of MSMED Act, to suppliers registered under the - -
MSMED Act, beyond the appointed day during the period

(v) Interest paid, under Section 16 of MSMED Act, to suppliers registered under the MSMED -

Act, beyond the appointed day during the period

(vi) Interest due and payable towards suppliers registered under MSMED Act, for payments - -
already made

(vii) Further interest remaining due and payable for earlier years 1.52 1.52

137904w
W100g +y
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33 Employee benefits
(i) Defined Contribution Plan:
The Company makes contributions, determined as a specified percentage of employees salaries, in respect of qualifying employees towaxds provident

fund and employees state insurance, which are defined contribution plans. The obligation of the Company is limited to the amount contributed and it has
no further contractual nor any constructive obligation. The expense recognised during the year are as under:

Contribution to provident and other funds:

Particulars For the year ended  For the year ended

31 March 2023 31 March 2022

Contribution to provident fund 2.79 3.40
Contribution to employee state insurance 0.49 0.61
3.28 4.02

(i) Defined Benefit Plan - Gratuity:
The Company provides for gratuity for employees in India as per the Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972. Employees who are in continuous service for a
period of 5 years are eligible for gratuity. The amount of gratuity payable on retirement/termination is employees last drawn basic salaxy per month
computed proportionately for 15 days salary multiplied for the number of years of service. The gratuity plan is a funded plan and the cormpany makes
contribution to recognised funds in India. The Company does not fully fund the liability and maintains the target level of funding to be main tained over a
period of time based on estimations of expected gratuity payments. The gratuity fund plan assets of the company are managed by Intermetal Engineers
(India) Private Limited Employee Group Gratuity Scheme through LIC Gratuity Group Plan.

Particulars As at As at
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Funded
A. Changes in Defined Benefit Obligation
Defined benefit obligation as at the beginning of the year 14.61 17.64
Current service cost 1.32 1.07
Interest cost 1.05 1.21
Benefit paid - (6.28)
Actuarial (gain) / loss 0.49 0.96
Defined Benefit Obligation at end of year 17.47 14.61
Change in fair value of plan assets
Fair value of plan assets at beginning of the year 9.99 12.97
Actual return on plan assets 0.93 0.85
Employer contribution 5.82 245
Benefit paid - (6.28)
Fair value of plan assets at end of year 16.74 9.99
Net Defined Benefit Asset / (Liability)
Present value of obligation at the end 17.47 14.61
Fair value of plan assets 16.74 9.99
Unfunded liability / provision in Balance Sheet 0,71 4,61
Total expense recognised in the statement of profit and loss
Current service cost 1.32 1.07
Interest cost 1.05 1.21
Interest income (0.72) (0.89)
Total expense recognised under employee benefit expense 1.65 1.39
Total expense recognised in OCI
Actuarial (gain) / loss on defined benefit obligation arising from change in demographic assumption - -
Actuarial (gain) / loss on defined benefit obligation arising from change in financial assumption (0.49) (0.96)
Actuarial (gain) / loss of plan assets 0.22 (0.04)
Unrecognised actuarial (gain) / loss at the end of year (0.27) (1.00)
B. Actuarial Assumptions:
Discount rate 7.38% 7.22%
Salary escalation rate 4.50% 4.50%
Withdrawl rate 5.00% 5.00%
Mortality rate IALM (2012-14) IALM (2012-14)
Retirement age (Years) 58 58

Assumptions regarding future mortality rate for gratuity is based on actuarial advice in accordance with published statistics and experience.

C. Expected contribution for the next one year
The Company expects to contribute Rs 1.35 lakhs (Previous year: Rs 1.49 lakhs) to its gratuity plan in the next year.
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Employee benefits (Continued)

Maturity profile of Defined Benefit Obligation

(i) Otol Year 4.55 3.90

(ii) 1to2 Year 0.67 0.62

(iii) 2 to 3 Year 0.64 0.64

(iv) 3to 4 Year 0.62 0.65

(v) 4t05 Year 0.59 0.67

(vi) 5 to 6Year 0.56 0.68

(vii) 6 Year onwards 9.83 1525

17.46 22.41

ErTa—n

E. Sensitlvl_tz nnaﬁk on defined benefit ob&nﬂnn

(i)

Particulars As at As at
31 March 2023 31 March 2022

Discount rate

a. Rate + 1% - the liability to decrease to 16.33 13.41

b. Rate - 1% - the liability to increase to 18.68 15.85

Salary escalation rate

a. Rate + 1% - the liability to increase to 18.71 15.83

b. Rate - 1% - the liability to decrease to 16.29 13.44

Attrition rate

a. Rate + 1% - the liability to increase to 17.52 14,66

b. Rate - 1% - the liability to decrease to 17.38 14,53

Risk Exposures:
Through its defined benefit plans, the Company is exposed to a number of risks, the most significant of which are detailed below:

Salary Increases: Actual salary increases will increase the Plan’s liability. Increase in salary escalation rate assumption in future valuations will also
increase the liability.

Investment Risk: If Plan is funded then assets liabilities mismatch & actual investment return on assets lower than the discount rate assumed at the last
valuation date can impact the liability,

Discount Rate: Reduction in discount rate in subsequent valuations can increase the plan’s liability,

Mortality & disability: Actual deaths & disability cases proving lower or higher than assumed in the valuation can impact the liabilities,

Withdrawals: Actual withdrawals proving higher or lower than assumed withdrawals and change of withdrawal rates at subsequent valuations can
impact Plan’s liability.

Defined benefit liability and employer contribution
The Company monitors the deficit in defined benefit obligation (net off plan assets) and endeavours to meet such deficit within reasonable future. The
objective is to ensure adequate investments of funds, at appropriate time, to generate sufficient corpus for future payments.

Other long-term employee benefits

Leave obligations

The leave obligation cover the company’s liability for earned leave.

The Company has recognised an amount of Rs. 0.49 lakhs (31 March 2022 - Rs. 0.41 lakhs) as an expense towards leave obligation and included in
“Employee benefits expense” in the Statement of Profit and Loss. The Company has determined the liability for leave obligation based on the actuarial
valuation using Projected Unit Credit Method.
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34 Segment reporting
The Company is primarily engaged in the business of manufacturing slide gate mechanics and related components. Based on the information
reported to the chief operating decision maker (CODM) for the purpose of resources’ allocation and assessment of performance, there is
single business segment in accordance with the requirements of Indian Accounting Standard (Ind AS) 108 on ‘Operating Segment Reporting'
notified under the Companies (Indian Accounting Standard) Rules, 2015, as amended.

Geographical Segments:

The analysis of geographical segment is based on the geographical location of the customers. The Company operates primarily in India and
has presence in international markets as well. Its business is accordingly aligned geographically, catering to two markets i.e. India and
Outside India. For customers located outside India, the Company has assessed that they carry same risk and rewards. The Company has
considered domestic and exports markets as geographical segments and accordingly disclosed these as separate segments. The geographical
segments considered for disclosure are as follows:

- Sales within India include sales to customers located within India.
- Sales outside India include sales to customers located outside India.

Secondary Segment Reporting (by Geographical Segments)

The following is the distribution of the Company's total revenue of operations by geographical market, regardless of where the goods were

produced: = -
Particulars For the year ended  For the year ended
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Within India * 485.02 44246
Outside India 48.59 13.52
533.61 455,98
* Inclusive of merchant export of Rs 51.58 lakhs during the year (Previous year: Rs 25.87 lakhs)
The following table shows the carrying amount of trade receivables by geographical segments
Particulars As at As at
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Within India 52.43 88,07
Outside India - -
52.43 88.07

All other assets (other than trade receivables) used in the Company’s business are located in India and are used to cater to both the categories
of customers (within India and outside India), accordingly the total cost incurred during the year to acquire tangible and intangible fixed
assets has not been disclosed.
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35 Financial instruments - fair value measurement
Accounting classifications and fair values

Particulars As at 31 March 2023 As at 31 March 2022
Amortised cost Fair value  Amortised cost Fair value
Current:
Trade receivables 5243 5243 88.07 88,07
Cash and cash equivalents 1,000.97 1,000.97 656.58 656,58
Bank balances other than cash and cash equivalents - - 60,00 60,00
Other financial assets 5.68 5.68 2.55 2.55
Total financial assets 1,059.08 1,059.08 807.21 807.21
Current:
Trade payables 37.98 37.98 50.57 50,57
Other financial liabilities 7.11 7.11 371 an
Total financial liabilities 45.09 45.09 54,28 5428
The management assessed that carrying amounts of cash and cash equivalents, bank bal trade ivables, trade payables, other fi ial assets and linbilities

apmﬁme&uﬁ&hvﬂueh:gﬂyduemﬁemmdmmmﬁﬁuofmm,

Fair value hierarchy

Level 1: Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets o liabilities.

Level 2: Inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability, either directly (i.e. as prices) or indirectly (i.e. derived from
prices),

Level 3: Inputs for the assets or liabilities that are not based on observable market data (unobservable inputs).

Financial instruments - risk management
The Company has exposure to the following risks arising from financial instruments: credit risk (refer note (b) below); liquidity risk (refer note (c) below); market risk
(refer note (d) below).

(a) Risk management framework

The Company's board of directors has overall responsibility for the establishment and oversight of the Company's risk management framework. The Company's risk
mmlsmntpoliu'umelnbiidmlmidmﬁ&mdmﬂynﬂnﬁﬂ.cﬁndby&eCmpmy.mmeﬁd:lim.itsmd Is and to itor risks and adh

to limits. Risk management policies and systems are reviewed regularly to reflect changes in market conditions and the Company’s activities.

The Company’s board oversees how management itors compli with the Company’s risk management policies and procedures, and reviews the adequacy of the
risk management framework in relation to the risks faced by the Company. The Company, through its training and management standards and procedures, aims to
maintain a disciplined and constructive control environment in which all employees understand their roles and obligations.

(b) Credit risk

Credit risk on cash and cash equivalent and bank balances is not significant as it majorly includes deposits with banks with high credit ratings assigned by international
and domestic credit rating agencies.

Credit risk arise from possibility that customer may default on its obligation to make timely payments, resulting into financial loss. The maxi exposure 1o the credit
risk is primarily from trade receivables.

The credit risk is managed by the Company through credit term approvals, establishing the financial reliability of the customers taking into account the financial
condition, analysis of historical bad debts and ageing of account receivables. Outstanding customer receivables are regularly monitored. Individual credit terms are set
accordingly by the Company's credit control department.

i) Expected credit loss (ECL) assessment for customers as at 31 March 2023 and 31 March 2022

The Company allocates each exposure to a credit risk grade based on a variety of data that is d ined to be predictive of the risk of loss (including but not limited to
past payment history, security by way of d posi dited fi ial and cash flow projections) and applying experienced credit

judgment. The following table provides information sbout the exposure to credit risk and expected credit loss for trade receivables
Particulars As at As at
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
"Not due 32.36 8225
0-30 days 10.72 1.96
31-60 days 035 2.28
61-90 days 6.61 0.55
91-180 days 135 1.04
181-240 days 1.49 -
More than 240 days 0.08 .
52,97 88.07

Loss allowance provision - trade receivables
Particulars Amount

Loss allowance as on 31 March 2021 1.56

Changes in loss allowance (Refer note 25) (1.56)

Loss allowance as on 31 March 2022 -
0.54

Changes in loss allowance (Refer note 30)
Loss allowance as on 31 March 2023 ___0‘54
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35 Fhauiﬂlmmu-ﬁhvﬂmmlw

ii) Cash and cash equivalents

The Company holds cash and cash equivalents of Rs. 1,000.98 lakhs at 31 March 2023 (31 March 2022: Rs. 656.58 lakhs). The cash and cash equivalents ares mainly held

with banks. The Company considers that its cash and cash equivalents have low credit risk based on the I credit ratings of parties,

(¢) Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company will not be able to settle or meet its obligations on time. The Company's primary of liquidity are cash gemierated from

operations. The cash flows from operating activities are driven primarily by operating results and changes in the working capital requiremnents.

The Company believe that its liquidity position is ad q to fund the operating and investing needs and to provide with flexibility to respond to further chwanges in the

business environment.

Maturities of financial liabilities

Particulars Carrying Total 0-12 months 1-2 years 3-5 years > 8 yeurs

amount

As at 31 March 2023

Trade payables 3798 3798 37.98 - - -

Other financial liabilities 7.1 7.11 7.11 - - .
45.09 45.09 45,09 - - -

Particulars Carrying Total 0-12 months 1-2 years 3-5 years > 5 yeurs

amount

As at 31 March 2022

Trade payables 50.57 50.57 50.57 - - -

Other financial liabilities i) | 371 3.71 - - -
54.28 54.28 54.28 - - -

(d) Market risk

Market risk is the risk that changes in market prices, such as foreign exchange rates, interest rates and equity prices, which will affect the Company’s income ©r the value
of its holdings of financial instruments. The objective of market risk management is to manage and control market risk exposures within acceptable parameters, while
optimising the return.

i) Currency risk

The Company of internationally and is exposed to foreign exchange risk in relation to operating activities (when revenue or expense is denominated in a foreign
currency) arising from foreign currency transactions.

Foreign currency risk exposure

The Company does not have any foreign y d inated receivables or payables as at the end of reporting year and lingly does not have any foreign currency
rigk.

ii) Interest rate risk

The Company does not have any borrowings and accordingly does not have any interest rate risk.
iii) Price risk
The Company does not huvsmyinvmuuuumﬁugmwmﬁnﬂydoumhvemypﬁwﬁﬂ.

36 Capital management

ThoCompnny';objoctimwhmmanagingcapiulistunfagunﬂlhdraﬁ]ilymmhmuagoiugcmmmthuitm inue to provide adequate retums to the
shareholders,

ﬂe&mmy&umhwmyburwﬁwmdﬁzmthﬂﬁwmofqﬁly,
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Earnings per share

The following table sets forth the computation of basic and dilutive earnings per share:

Particulars For the year ended l-?ur the year ended
31 March 2023 31 March 2022

Net profit for the year attributable to equity shareholders 178.86 101.26

Weighted average number of shares 1,597 1,597

Eami r share, basic and diluted ) 11,199.65 6,340,93

Note: Basic and diluted earnings per share during the current year are same as the Company has no potentially dilutive equity shares outstanding
as at the year end.

Reconciliation of shares used in computing earnings per share

Particulars For the year ended  For the year ended
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
No. of equity shares at the beginning of the year 1,597 1,597
Add: Shares issued during the year = »
No. of equity shares at the end of the year 1,597 1,597
Weighted average number of equity shares of Rs 100 each used for calculation of basic and 1,597 1,597

diluted earnings per share

Contingent liabilities and commitments

Contingent liabilities:
Claims against the Company not acknowledged as debts: Nil (Previous year: Nil)

Commitments:
Estimated amount of contracts remaining to be executed on capital account and not provided for: Nil (Previous year: Nil)

Payment to auditors

Particulars For the year ended Eﬁr the year ended
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
For statutory audit 2.94 245
For limited review * 2.69 1.20
For other matters 0.30 025
5.93 3.90_

* Including limited review of interim special purpose condensed financial statements of Rs 1.25 lakhs (Previous year: Rs Nil).
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Related party disclosure

Names of related parties and description of relationship

Related parties where control exists

RHI Magpnesita India Limited (formerly known as Orient Refractories Limited), Holding Company (w.e.f. 18.05.2019)
Key Managerial Personnel (KMP):

Mr. Vijay Sharma : Non-executive director

Mr. Parmod Sagar : Non-executive director

Mr. Sanjeev Bhardwaj : Company Secretary (upto 29 January 2023)

Related parties transactions entered into by the Company for the year ended 31 March 2023

Particulars For the year ended
31 March 2023

For the year ended
31 March 2022

Sales

RHI Magnesita India Limited * 78.42
(formerly known as Orient Refractories Limited)

* Amount disclosed is inclusive of freight and transport charges of

Rs.1.01 lakhs (Previous year: Rs Nil) and goods and service tax of Rs

11.96 lakhs (Previous year: Rs 2.27 lakhs)

RHI Refractories Africa (Pty) Ltd.# 12.29
* Amount disclosed is inclusive of freight and transport charges of
Rs 5.85 lakhs (Previous year: Rs Nil)

Compensation of key management personnel
Director sitting fees

= Mr. Vijay Sharma 1.50

14.90

Related party balances
Amounts due to or due from related parties are as follows:

Particulars As at
31 March 2023

As at
31 March 2022

Trade receivables
RHI Magnesita India Limited 20.46
(formerly known as Orient Refractories Limited)

The Indian Parliament has approved the Code on Social Security, 2020 which would impact the contributions by the company towards
Provident Fund and Gratuity. The Ministry of Labour and Employment has released draft rules for the Code on Social Security, 2020 on
November 13, 2020, and has invited suggestions from stakeholders which are under active consideration by the Ministry. The Company will
assess the impact and its evaluation once the subject rules are notified and will give appropriate impact in its financial statements in the period in

which, the Code becomes effective and the related rules to determine the financial impact are published.
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42 Trade receivable ageing schedule

Year ended 31 March 2023:

Particulars Notdue | Lessthan | 6 Months-| 1-2 Years | 2-3 Years | More than Total
6 Months 1 Year 3 Years
Undisput_eé trade receivable - considered good 32.38 19.03 1.02 - - - 52,43
Undisputed trade receivable - which have - - 0.50 0.04 - - 0.54
significant increase in credit risk
Undisputed trade receivable - credit impaired - - - - - - -
Disputed trade receivable - considered good - - - - - - -
Disputed trade receivable - which have significant - - - - - - -
increase in credit risk
Disputed trade receivable - credit impaired - - - - - - -
Total 32.38 19.03 1.52 0.04 - - Sﬁ?_
Less: Allowance for expected credit loss (0.54)
Total trade receivables 52.43
Year ended 31 March 2022:
Particulars Not due | Lessthan | 6 Months-| 1-2 Years | 2-3 Years | More than Total
6 Months 1 Year 3 Years
Undisputed trade receivable - considered good 82.25 5.83 - . . . 88.07
Undisputed trade receivable - which have - - - - - - -
significant increase in credit risk
Disputed trade receivable - considered - - - - - - -
Disputed trade receivable - which have significant - - - - - - -
increase in credit risk
82.25 5.83 - - - - 88.07
88.07
43 Trade payable ageing schedule
Year ended 31 March 2023:
Particulars Unbilled Notdue | Less than 1| 1-2years | 2-3 years | More than Total
year 3 Years
MSME 5.58 21.96 4.25 - - - 31.79
Others 0.29 4.24 0.95 - - . 0.71 6.19
Disputed dues - MSME - - - - - - -
Disputed dues - Others - - - - - - "=
Total 5.87 26.20 5.20 - - 0.71 37.99
Year ended 31 March 2022:
Particulars Unbilled Notdue | Less than 1| 1-2 years | 2-3 years | More than Total
year 3 Years
4.19 42.16 - . - . 46.36 |
124 236 = = E 0.71 4.21
5.43 44.42 - - - 0.71 50.57
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Subsequent events
There are no subsequent events that have occurred afier the reporting period till the date of this financial statements,

Additional regulatory information required by Schedule ITI

Details of benami property held:

The Company does not have any Benami property, where any proceeding has been initiated or pending against the Compamy for
holding any Benami property.

Wilful defaulter:

The Company is not declared wilful defaulter by any bank or Financial institution or other lender during the year.

Relationship with struck off companies:
The Company does not have any transactions with companies struck off.

Borrowing secured against current assets:
The Company does not have any charges or satisfaction which is yet to be registered with ROC beyond the statutory period.

Utilisation of borrowed funds and share premium:
A. The Company has not advanced or loaned or invested funds to any other person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities
(Intermediaries) with the understanding that the Intermediary shall:

(a) directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the
company (Ultimate Beneficiaries) or

(b) provide any guarantee, security or the like to or on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.

B. The Company has not received any fund from any person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities (Funding Party) with the
understanding (whether recorded in writing or otherwise) that the Company shall:

(a) directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the
Funding Party (Ultimate Beneficiaries) or

(b) provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.

Compliance with number of layers of companies:

The Company does not have any subsidiary, hence compliance with number of layers of companies is not applicable to the
Company.

Valuation of Property, Plant and Equipment and Intangible assets:
The Company has not revalued its property, plant and equipment or intangible assets or both during the current or previous year.

Loans or advances in the nature of loans to specified persons:
There are no outstanding loans or advances in the nature of loans granted to Promoters, Directors, key management personnel and
their related parties (as defined under Companies Act, 2013), either severally or jointly with any other person.

Compliance with approved Scheme of Arrangement:
The Company has not entered into any scheme of arrangement which has an accounting impact on current or previous financial year,

Details of crypto currency or virtual currency:
The Company has not traded or invested in Crypto currency or Virtual Currency during the financial year.

Undisclosed income:

The Company does not have not any such transaction which is not recorded in the books of accounts that has been surrendered or
disclosed as income during the year in the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961 (such as, search or survey or any other
relevant provisions of the Income Tax Act, 1961

There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education and Protection Fund by the Company during
the year.

The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for which there were any foreseeable losses.
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51 The Indian Parliament has approved the Code on Social Security, 2020 which would impact the contributions by the Cornpany
towards Provident Fund and Gratuity. The Ministry of Labour and Employment has released draft rules for the Code on Social
Security, 2020 on 13 November 2020, and has invited suggestions from stakeholders which are under active consideration by the
Ministry. The Company will assess the impact and its evaluation once the subject rules are notified and will give appropriate i mpact
in its financial statements in the period in which, the Code becomes effective and the related rules to determine the financial impact
are published.

52 In the opinion of the board of directors, assets, loans and advances have a value on realization in the ordinary course of the business
at least equal to the amounts at which they are stated and provision for all known liabilities have been made.

53 Previous year's figures
Previous year's figures have been regrouped / restated / reclassified, wherever necessary, to confirm to the current year's presentation,
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